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	Attached is the name of a political committee and its treasurer who failed to file the 2020 October Monthly Report (Election Sensitive) in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a).  The October Monthly Report was due on October 20, 2020. 
	Attached is the name of a political committee and its treasurer who failed to file the 2020 October Monthly Report (Election Sensitive) in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a).  The October Monthly Report was due on October 20, 2020. 
	Attached is the name of a political committee and its treasurer who failed to file the 2020 October Monthly Report (Election Sensitive) in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a).  The October Monthly Report was due on October 20, 2020. 
	Attached is the name of a political committee and its treasurer who failed to file the 2020 October Monthly Report (Election Sensitive) in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a).  The October Monthly Report was due on October 20, 2020. 
	Under the Administrative Fine Program, the October Monthly Report is considered an election-sensitive filing for authorized committees supporting candidates involved in the general election as well as all unauthorized committees.  For the committee listed on the attached RTB Circulation Report, the October Monthly Report was an election-sensitive filing. The committee either filed the report  after the due date, failed to file the report or failed to file the report prior to four (4) days before the general
	Recommendation 
	1.Find reason to believe that the political committee and its treasurer, in her official capacity,listed on the RTB Circulation Report violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and make a preliminarydetermination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the RTBCirculation Report.
	1.Find reason to believe that the political committee and its treasurer, in her official capacity,listed on the RTB Circulation Report violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and make a preliminarydetermination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the RTBCirculation Report.
	1.Find reason to believe that the political committee and its treasurer, in her official capacity,listed on the RTB Circulation Report violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and make a preliminarydetermination that the civil money penalty would be the amount indicated on the RTBCirculation Report.
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	    FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	    WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	     
	         April 1, 2021   
	 
	REVIEWING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
	OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW (“OAR”) 
	  
	AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015 – Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer (C00702324) 
	 
	Summary of Recommendations 
	 
	Make a final determination in AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015 that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalties. 
	 
	Reason-to-Believe Background 
	 
	The 2020 June Monthly Report was due on June 20, 2020.   The Committee filed the report on February 14, 2021, 239 days late.  The report is not election sensitive and was not filed within 30 days of the due date; therefore, the report is considered not filed.  11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(1).  On January 8, 2021, the Commission found reason to believe (“RTB”) that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 June Monthly Report.  The Commission also made a prelimina
	 
	The 2020 July Monthly Report was due on July 20, 2020.   The Committee filed the report on February 14, 2021, 209 days late.  The report is not election sensitive and was not filed within 30 days of the due date; therefore, the report is considered not filed.  11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(1).  On January 8, 2021, the Commission found RTB that the respondents violated                               52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 July Monthly Report.  The Commission also made a p
	 
	The 2020 August Monthly Report was due on August 20, 2020. The Committee filed the report on February 14, 2021, 178 days late.  The report is not election sensitive and was not filed within 30 days of the due date; therefore, the report is considered not filed.                                                             11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(1).  On January 8, 2021, the Commission found RTB that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 August Monthly Repo
	 
	The 2020 September Monthly Report was due on September 20, 2020. The Committee filed the report on February 14, 2021, 147 days late.  The report is not election sensitive and was not filed within 30 days of the due date; therefore, the report is considered not filed.                                                             11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(1).  On January 7, 2021, the Commission found RTB that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 September Mon
	 
	The 2020 October Monthly Report was due on October 20, 2020. The Committee filed the report on February 14, 2021, 117 days late.  The report is election sensitive and was not filed prior to four days before the general election; therefore, the report is considered not filed.                                      11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(2).  On January 8, 2021, the Commission found RTB that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 October Monthly Report.  The
	 
	The 2020 Pre-General Report was due on October 22, 2020.  The Committee filed the 2020 November Monthly Report disclosing activity for the 2020 Pre-General Report coverage period on February 14, 2021, 115 days late.  The report is election sensitive and was not filed prior to four days before the general election; therefore, the report is considered not filed.                                                       11 C.F.R. §§ 111.43(d)(1) and (e)(2).  On January 7, 2021, the Commission found RTB that the re
	 
	Legal Requirements 
	 
	 The Federal Election Campaign Act (“Act”) states that the treasurer of a political committee not authorized by a candidate which is filing on a monthly basis in an election year shall file a monthly report no later than 20 days after the last day of the month.  In lieu of a November Monthly Report in any year in which there is a regularly scheduled general election, a pre-election report shall be filed no later than 12 days before the general election.                                            52 U.S.C. §
	 
	 
	Respondents’ Challenges 
	P
	On February 16, 2021, the Commission received the written response (“challenge”) from the Treasurer for AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015.  The Treasurer states the Committee has had no recent activity and requests the Commission forgive the penalties.  She further explains, in part: 
	P
	The reports were not filed timely due to Covid-19. We were working part time from April-May and then June 1, 2020 I was furloughed, and the office closed. Starting this past week, February 8-12, 2021, we have been brought back in stages and since coming back, all reports have been filed. 
	P
	Analysis 
	P
	The Treasurer indicates the reports were not timely filed due to staffing impacts of COVID-19.In accordance with 11 C.F.R. § 111.35, the FEC will only consider challenges that are basedon at least one of three grounds: (1) a factual error in the RTB finding; (2) miscalculation of thecalculated civil money penalty by the FEC; or (3) demonstrated use of best efforts to file in atimely manner when prevented from doing so by reasonably unforeseen circumstances that werebeyond the respondents’ control.  The “bes
	P
	The Commission states in its Explanation and Justification for Revised 11 CFR § 111.35(b)(3) – “Best  Efforts” Defense, 72 Fed. Reg. 14662, 14664-14666 (Mar. 29, 2007) that respondents must show 
	P
	...that the reasonably unforeseen circumstances in fact prevented the timely and proper filing of the required report...[T]his rule requires a strict causal relationship between the circumstances described in the challenge...and the respondent's inability to file the report timely.  It is not sufficient for reasonably unforeseen circumstances to make it merely more difficult than usual for the respondent to file on time.  The circumstance must cause the respondent to be unable to file in a timely and proper
	P
	The Reviewing Officer acknowledges the combination of office closures and reduced staffing may have impacted the Committee’s normal operations.  However, the respondents did not demonstrate that the unforeseen circumstances directly prevented the respondents from filing the reports prior to the filing deadlines.  Nor did the respondents demonstrate that they filed the reports no later than 24 hours after the end of a circumstance considered to be unforeseen and beyond the respondents’ control.  Therefore, t
	 
	At the time of the RTB findings, the Commission used an estimated level of activity ($7,723) to calculate the penalties because the reports had not yet been filed.                                                       11 C.F.R § 111.43(d)(2)(i).  On February 14, 2021, the Committee filed the 2020 June Monthly, 2020 July Monthly, 2020 August Monthly, 2020 September Monthly, 2020 October Monthly, and 2020 November Monthly Reports.  Each of the reports discloses $0 in total receipts and $0 in total disbursemen
	1

	1 The Committee’s 2020 November Monthly Report included the 2020 Pre-General Report coverage period of 10/1/20 – 10/14/20.   
	1 The Committee’s 2020 November Monthly Report included the 2020 Pre-General Report coverage period of 10/1/20 – 10/14/20.   

	The Reviewing Officer recommends that the Commission make a final determination in AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015 that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalties.  
	 
	OAR Recommendations 
	 
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  (7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  (7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  (7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(8) Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(8) Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(8) Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(9) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(9) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(9) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(10) Make a final determination in AF# 4011 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  
	(10) Make a final determination in AF# 4011 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  
	(10) Make a final determination in AF# 4011 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  


	 
	(11) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4015 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(11) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4015 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(11) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4015 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(12) Make a final determination in AF# 4015 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  
	(12) Make a final determination in AF# 4015 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  
	(12) Make a final determination in AF# 4015 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834);  


	 
	(13) Send the appropriate letters. 
	(13) Send the appropriate letters. 
	(13) Send the appropriate letters. 
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	Sect
	P
	DECLARATION OF KRISTIN D. ROSER 
	P
	P
	1.I am the Chief of the Compliance Branch for the Reports Analysis Division of the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Chief of the Compliance Branch, Ioversee the initial processing of the Administrative Fine Program.  I make this declarationbased on my personal knowledge and, if called upon as a witness, could and would testifycompetently to the following matters.
	1.I am the Chief of the Compliance Branch for the Reports Analysis Division of the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Chief of the Compliance Branch, Ioversee the initial processing of the Administrative Fine Program.  I make this declarationbased on my personal knowledge and, if called upon as a witness, could and would testifycompetently to the following matters.
	1.I am the Chief of the Compliance Branch for the Reports Analysis Division of the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Chief of the Compliance Branch, Ioversee the initial processing of the Administrative Fine Program.  I make this declarationbased on my personal knowledge and, if called upon as a witness, could and would testifycompetently to the following matters.

	2.It is the practice of the Reports Analysis Division to document all calls to or from committeesregarding a letter they receive or any questions relating to the FECFile software oradministrative fine regulations, including due dates of reports and filing requirements.
	2.It is the practice of the Reports Analysis Division to document all calls to or from committeesregarding a letter they receive or any questions relating to the FECFile software oradministrative fine regulations, including due dates of reports and filing requirements.

	3.I hereby certify that documents identified herein are true and accurate copies of the followingsent by the Commission to Conservatives for a Better North Carolina:
	3.I hereby certify that documents identified herein are true and accurate copies of the followingsent by the Commission to Conservatives for a Better North Carolina:

	A)Non-Filer Letter, dated July 7, 2020, referencing the 2020 June Monthly Report(sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	A)Non-Filer Letter, dated July 7, 2020, referencing the 2020 June Monthly Report(sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	B)Non-Filer Letter, dated August 5, 2020, referencing the 2020 July MonthlyReport (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	B)Non-Filer Letter, dated August 5, 2020, referencing the 2020 July MonthlyReport (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	C)Non-Filer Letter, dated September 8, 2020, referencing the 2020 August MonthlyReport (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	C)Non-Filer Letter, dated September 8, 2020, referencing the 2020 August MonthlyReport (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	D)Non-Filer Letter, dated October 6, 2020, referencing the 2020 SeptemberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	D)Non-Filer Letter, dated October 6, 2020, referencing the 2020 SeptemberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	E)Non-Filer Letter, dated November 5, 2020, referencing the 2020 OctoberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	E)Non-Filer Letter, dated November 5, 2020, referencing the 2020 OctoberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	F)Non-Filer Letter, dated November 6, 2020, referencing the 2020 12 Day Pre-General Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);
	F)Non-Filer Letter, dated November 6, 2020, referencing the 2020 12 Day Pre-General Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com);

	G)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 JuneMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	G)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 JuneMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).


	H)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated January 25, 2021, referencing the 2020 JulyMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	H)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated January 25, 2021, referencing the 2020 JulyMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	H)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated January 25, 2021, referencing the 2020 JulyMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).

	I)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 AugustMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	I)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 AugustMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).

	J)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020September Monthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	J)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020September Monthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:shendricks@platinumcorral.com).

	K)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 OctoberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	K)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 4, 2021, referencing the 2020 OctoberMonthly Report (sent via electronic mail to:  shendricks@platinumcorral.com).

	L)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 9, 2021, referencing the 2020 12 DayPre-General Report (sent via electronic mail to:shendricks@platinumcorral.com).
	L)Reason-to-Believe Letter, dated February 9, 2021, referencing the 2020 12 DayPre-General Report (sent via electronic mail to:shendricks@platinumcorral.com).

	LI
	LBody

	4.I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records and find thatConservatives for a Better North Carolina filed the 2020 June Monthly Report, 2020 JulyMonthly Report, 2020 August Monthly Report, 2020 September Monthly Report, and the2020 October Monthly Report on February 14, 2021.  In addition, Conservatives for a BetterNorth Carolina filed a 2020 November Monthly Report, covering the 2020 12 Day Pre-General reporting period from October 1, 2020 through October 14, 2020, with theCommis
	4.I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records and find thatConservatives for a Better North Carolina filed the 2020 June Monthly Report, 2020 JulyMonthly Report, 2020 August Monthly Report, 2020 September Monthly Report, and the2020 October Monthly Report on February 14, 2021.  In addition, Conservatives for a BetterNorth Carolina filed a 2020 November Monthly Report, covering the 2020 12 Day Pre-General reporting period from October 1, 2020 through October 14, 2020, with theCommis


	P
	______________________ 
	Kristin D. Roser 
	Chief, Compliance Branch 
	Reports Analysis Division 
	Federal Election Commission    
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	Part
	Part
	Sect
	P
	DECLARATION OF RHIANNON MAGRUDER 
	P
	P
	1)I am the Reviewing Officer in the Office of Administrative Review for the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Reviewing Officer, Iconduct research with respect to all challenges submitted in accordance with theAdministrative Fine program.
	1)I am the Reviewing Officer in the Office of Administrative Review for the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Reviewing Officer, Iconduct research with respect to all challenges submitted in accordance with theAdministrative Fine program.
	1)I am the Reviewing Officer in the Office of Administrative Review for the FederalElection Commission (“Commission”).  In my capacity as Reviewing Officer, Iconduct research with respect to all challenges submitted in accordance with theAdministrative Fine program.


	P
	2)A political committee not authorized by a candidate which is filing on a monthly basisin an election year shall file a June Monthly Report by June 20, a July Monthly Reportby July 20, an August Monthly Report by August 20, a September Monthly Report bySeptember 20, an October Monthly Report by October 20, and a Pre-General Reportby the 12th day before the general election.  Reports filed electronically must bereceived and validated at or before 11:59 pm, Eastern Standard/Daylight Time on June20, 2020 for 
	2)A political committee not authorized by a candidate which is filing on a monthly basisin an election year shall file a June Monthly Report by June 20, a July Monthly Reportby July 20, an August Monthly Report by August 20, a September Monthly Report bySeptember 20, an October Monthly Report by October 20, and a Pre-General Reportby the 12th day before the general election.  Reports filed electronically must bereceived and validated at or before 11:59 pm, Eastern Standard/Daylight Time on June20, 2020 for 
	2)A political committee not authorized by a candidate which is filing on a monthly basisin an election year shall file a June Monthly Report by June 20, a July Monthly Reportby July 20, an August Monthly Report by August 20, a September Monthly Report bySeptember 20, an October Monthly Report by October 20, and a Pre-General Reportby the 12th day before the general election.  Reports filed electronically must bereceived and validated at or before 11:59 pm, Eastern Standard/Daylight Time on June20, 2020 for 


	P
	3)I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records and that thedocuments identified herein are the true and accurate copies of:
	3)I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records and that thedocuments identified herein are the true and accurate copies of:
	3)I hereby certify that I have searched the Commission’s public records and that thedocuments identified herein are the true and accurate copies of:


	P
	a)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 June Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of May 1 through May 31, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	a)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 June Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of May 1 through May 31, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	a)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 June Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of May 1 through May 31, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	b)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 July Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of June 1 through June 30, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	b)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 July Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of June 1 through June 30, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	b)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 July Monthly Report filed by Conservativesfor a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity asTreasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of June 1 through June 30, 2020and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	c)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 August Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of July 1 throughJuly 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	c)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 August Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of July 1 throughJuly 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	c)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 August Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of July 1 throughJuly 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	d)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 September Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of August 1 throughAugust 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	d)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 September Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of August 1 throughAugust 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	d)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 September Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of August 1 throughAugust 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	e)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 October Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of September 1through September 30, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	e)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 October Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of September 1through September 30, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	e)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 October Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of September 1through September 30, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	f)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 November Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of October 1through October 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	f)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 November Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of October 1through October 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.
	f)Cover and Summary pages of the 2020 November Monthly Report filed byConservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her officialcapacity as Treasurer.  The report includes the coverage period of October 1through October 31, 2020 and was electronically filed on February 14, 2021.


	P
	4) Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is            true and correct and that this declaration was executed on the 1st day of April, 2021.
	4) Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is            true and correct and that this declaration was executed on the 1st day of April, 2021.
	4) Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is            true and correct and that this declaration was executed on the 1st day of April, 2021.
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	P
	P
	_______________________       
	Rhiannon Magruder 
	Reviewing Officer 
	Office of Administrative Review 
	Federal Election Commission 
	P




	    FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	      WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	April 2, 2021 
	Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer Conservatives for a Better North Carolina 521 New Bridge Street Jacksonville, NC  28540 C00702324 AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015 Dear Ms. Hendricks: On January 8, 2021, the Commission found reason to believe (“RTB”) that Conservatives for a Better America and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 June Monthly Report.  The Commission also made a prelim
	Document
	Part
	Part
	Sect
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	On January 7, 2021, the Commission found RTB that Conservatives for a Better America and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to timely file the 2020 Pre-General Report.  The Commission also made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $834 based on the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43.   After reviewing your written response and any supplemental information submitted by you and Commission staff, the Reviewing Officer has reco
	P
	P
	Sincerely, 
	P
	P
	P
	Rhiannon Magruder 
	Reviewing Officer 
	Office of Administrative Review 



	file the 2020 Pre-General Report and made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $834 based on the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43 (AF# 4015).   
	file the 2020 Pre-General Report and made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $834 based on the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43 (AF# 4015).   
	file the 2020 Pre-General Report and made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $834 based on the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43 (AF# 4015).   
	file the 2020 Pre-General Report and made a preliminary determination that the civil money penalty was $834 based on the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43 (AF# 4015).   
	 
	On February 16, 2021, the Commission received their written response (“challenge”).  After reviewing the challenge, the Reviewing Officer Recommendation (“ROR”) dated April 1, 2021 was forwarded to the Commission, a copy was forwarded to the respondents, and is hereby incorporated by reference.  The Reviewing Officer recommended that the Commission make a final determination in AF# 3853, AF# 3908, AF# 3919, AF# 3927, AF# 4011, and AF# 4015 that the respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civ
	Within 10 days of transmittal of the recommendation, they may file a written response with the Commission Secretary which may not raise any arguments not raised in their challenge or not directly responsive to the ROR.  11 C.F.R. § 111.36(f).  The respondents have since indicated they will not be submitting a response to the ROR. 
	 
	OAR Recommendations 
	 
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(1) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3853 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(2) Make a final determination in AF# 3853 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(3) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3908 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(4) Make a final determination in AF# 3908 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(5) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3919 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  


	 
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  
	(6) Make a final determination in AF# 3919 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);  


	 
	(7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
	(7) Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 3927 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;  
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	P
	(8)Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);(9)Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;(10)Make a final determination in AF# 4011 th
	(8)Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);(9)Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;(10)Make a final determination in AF# 4011 th
	(8)Make a final determination in AF# 3927 that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) and assess no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $417);(9)Adopt the Reviewing Officer recommendation for AF# 4011 involving Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and Sara Hendricks, in her official capacity as Treasurer, in making the final determination;(10)Make a final determination in AF# 4011 th
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	    FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	       WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	  
	           May 7, 2021 
	                               
	 
	Sara Hendricks, in official capacity as Treasurer     
	Conservatives for a Better North Carolina 
	521 New Bridge St 
	Jacksonville, NC  28540 
	      
	C00702324 
	AF# 4011 
	    
	Dear Ms. Hendricks: 
	 
	On January 8, 2021, the Federal Election Commission (“the Commission”) found reason to believe (“RTB”) that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a) for failing to file the 2020 October Monthly Report.  By letter dated February 4, 2021, the Commission sent notification of the RTB finding that included a civil money penalty calculated at RTB of $834 in accordance with the schedule of penalties at 11 C.F.R. § 111.43.  On February 
	 
	The Reviewing Officer reviewed the Commission’s RTB finding with its supporting documentation and your written response.  Based on this review, the Reviewing Officer recommended that the Commission reduce the RTB civil money penalty because it was calculated using an estimated level of activity, make a final determination that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a), and based on the actual level of activity disclosed on the 20
	 
	            On April 21, 2021, the Commission adopted the Reviewing Officer’s recommendation and made a final determination that Conservatives for a Better North Carolina and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer, violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a), and based on the level of activity disclosed on the 2020 October Monthly Report ($0), assessed no civil money penalty (reduced from the RTB civil money penalty of $834).  It is based on the same factors used to calculate the civil money penalty at RTB except th
	 
	The confidentiality provisions at 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(12) no longer apply and this matter is now public.  Pursuant to 11 C.F.R. §§ 111.42(b) and 111.20(c), the file will be placed on the public record within 30 days from the date of this notification. 
	 
	If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Rhiannon Magruder on our toll free number (800) 424-9530 (press 0, then ext. 1660) or (202) 694-1660.  
	                                         
	 
	 
	On behalf of the Commission,  
	 
	Figure

	 
	 
	                                      Shana M. Broussard 
	Chair 
	 
	 
	Attachment 








